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funded by USDA (not all bases apply to
all programs). Remedies and complaint
filing deadlines vary by program or
incident.

Program information may be made
available in languages other than
English. Persons with disabilities who
require alternative means of
communication to obtain program
information (e.g., Braille, large print,
audiotape, American Sign Language)
should contact the responsible Mission
Area, agency, or staff office; the USDA
TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600
(voice and TTY); or the Federal Relay
Service at (800) 877—8339.

To file a program discrimination
complaint, a complainant should
complete a Form AD-3027, USDA
Program Discrimination Complaint
Form, which can be obtained online at
https://www.ocio.usda.gov/document/
ad-3027, from any USDA office, by
calling (866) 632—9992, or by writing a
letter addressed to USDA. The letter
must contain the complainant’s name,
address, telephone number, and a
written description of the alleged
discriminatory action in sufficient detail
to inform the Assistant Secretary for
Civil Rights (ASCR) about the nature
and date of an alleged civil rights
violation. The completed AD-3027 form
or letter must be submitted to USDA by:

(1) Mail: U.S. Department of
Agriculture, Office of the Assistant
Secretary for Civil Rights, 1400
Independence Avenue SW, Washington,
DC 20250-9410; or

(2) Fax: (833) 2561665 or (202) 690—
7442; or

(3) Email: program.intake@usda.gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity
provider, employer, and lender.

Paul Kiecker,

Administrator.

[FR Doc. 2022—-23108 Filed 10-24-22; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 3410-DM-P

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

Foreign-Trade Zones Board
[Order No. 2135]

Designation of New Grantee, Foreign-
Trade Zone 123, Denver, Colorado

Pursuant to its authority under the
Foreign-Trade Zones Act of June 18,
1934, as amended (19 U.S.C. 81a—81u),
the Foreign-Trade Zones Board (the
Board) adopts the following Order:

The Foreign-Trade Zones (FTZ) Board
(the Board) has considered the
application (docketed August 18, 2022)
submitted by the City and County of
Denver, grantee of FTZ 123, requesting

reissuance of the grant of authority for
said zone to the Rocky Mountain Word
Trade Center Association d/b/a World
Trade Center Denver, which has
accepted such reissuance subject to
approval by the FTZ Board. Upon
review, the Board finds that the
requirements of the FTZ Act and the
Board’s regulations are satisfied, and
that the proposal is in the public
interest.

Therefore, the Board approves the
application and recognizes the Rocky
Mountain Word Trade Center
Association d/b/a World Trade Center
Denver as the new grantee for Foreign-
Trade Zone 123, subject to the FTZ Act
and the Board’s regulations, including
section 400.13.

Dated: October 19, 2022.
Lisa W. Wang,

Assistant Secretary for Enforcement and
Compliance, Alternate Chairman, Foreign-
Trade Zones Board.

[FR Doc. 2022-23219 Filed 10-24-22; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 3510-DS-P

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
Bureau of Industry and Security

Order Denying Export Privileges; In the
Matter of: Claudia Delgadillo, 3325
Duranzo Avenue, El Paso, Texas 79905

On October 9, 2019, in the U.S.
District Court for the Western District of
Texas, Claudia Delgadillo (“Delgadillo”)
was convicted of violating 18 U.S.C.
554(a). Specifically, Delgadillo was
convicted of knowingly and willfully
combining, conspiring, confederating
and agreeing with others to knowingly
and unlawfully conceal, buy, and
facilitate the transportation and
concealment of various rifles and
handguns, knowing they were to be
exported from the United States to
Mexico. As a result of her conviction,
the Court sentenced Delgadillo to 48
months in prison, three years of
supervised release and a $100
assessment.

Pursuant to Section 1760(e) of the
Export Control Reform Act (“ECRA”),?
the export privileges of any person who
has been convicted of certain offenses,
including, but not limited to, 18 U.S.C.
554, may be denied for a period of up
to ten (10) years from the date of his/her
conviction. 50 U.S.C. 4819(e). In
addition, any Bureau of Industry and
Security (“BIS”’) licenses or other
authorizations issued under ECRA, in

1ECRA was enacted on August 13, 2018, as part
of the John S. McCain National Defense
Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2019, and as
amended is codified at 50 U.S.C. 4801-4852.

which the person had an interest at the
time of the conviction, may be revoked.
Id.

BIS received notice of Delgadillo’s
conviction for violating 18 U.S.C. 554.
As provided in Section 766.25 of the
Export Administration Regulations
(“EAR” or the “Regulations’’), BIS
provided notice and opportunity for
Delgadillo to make a written submission
to BIS. 15 CFR 766.25.2 BIS has not
received a written submission from
Delgadillo.

Based upon my review of the record
and consultations with BIS’s Office of
Exporter Services, including its
Director, and the facts available to BIS,
I have decided to deny Delgadillo’s
export privileges under the Regulations
for a period of 10 years from the date of
Delgadillo’s conviction. The Office of
Exporter Services has also decided to
revoke any BIS-issued licenses in which
Delgadillo had an interest at the time of
her conviction.?

Accordingly, it is hereby Ordered:

First, from the date of this Order until
October 9, 2029, Claudia Delgadillo,
with a last known address of 3325
Duranzo Avenue, El Paso, Texas 79905,
and when acting for or on her behalf,
her successors, assigns, employees,
agents or representatives (‘“the Denied
Person’’), may not directly or indirectly
participate in any way in any
transaction involving any commodity,
software or technology (hereinafter
collectively referred to as “item”)
exported or to be exported from the
United States that is subject to the
Regulations, including, but not limited
to:

A. Applying for, obtaining, or using
any license, license exception, or export
control document;

B. Carrying on negotiations
concerning, or ordering, buying,
receiving, using, selling, delivering,
storing, disposing of, forwarding,
transporting, financing, or otherwise
servicing in any way, any transaction
involving any item exported or to be
exported from the United States that is
subject to the Regulations, or engaging
in any other activity subject to the
Regulations; or

C. Benefitting in any way from any
transaction involving any item exported
or to be exported from the United States
that is subject to the Regulations, or
from any other activity subject to the
Regulations.

2The Regulations are currently codified in the
Code of Federal Regulations at 15 CFR parts 730—
774 (2022).

3 The Director, Office of Export Enforcement, is
the authorizing official for issuance of denial orders
pursuant to amendments to the Regulations (85 FR
73411, November 18, 2020).
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Second, no person may, directly or
indirectly, do any of the following:

A. Export, reexport, or transfer (in-
country) to or on behalf of the Denied
Person any item subject to the
Regulations;

B. Take any action that facilitates the
acquisition or attempted acquisition by
the Denied Person of the ownership,
possession, or control of any item
subject to the Regulations that has been
or will be exported from the United
States, including financing or other
support activities related to a
transaction whereby the Denied Person
acquires or attempts to acquire such
ownership, possession or control;

C. Take any action to acquire from or
to facilitate the acquisition or attempted
acquisition from the Denied Person of
any item subject to the Regulations that
has been exported from the United
States;

D. Obtain from the Denied Person in
the United States any item subject to the
Regulations with knowledge or reason
to know that the item will be, or is
intended to be, exported from the
United States; or

E. Engage in any transaction to service
any item subject to the Regulations that
has been or will be exported from the
United States and which is owned,
possessed or controlled by the Denied
Person, or service any item, of whatever
origin, that is owned, possessed or
controlled by the Denied Person if such
service involves the use of any item
subject to the Regulations that has been
or will be exported from the United
States. For purposes of this paragraph,
servicing means installation,
maintenance, repair, modification or
testing.

Third, pursuant to Section 1760(e) of
ECRA and sections 766.23 and 766.25 of
the Regulations, any other person, firm,
corporation, or business organization
related to Delgadillo by ownership,
control, position of responsibility,
affiliation, or other connection in the
conduct of trade or business may also be
made subject to the provisions of this
Order in order to prevent evasion of this
Order.

Fourth, in accordance with part 756 of
the Regulations, Delgadillo may file an
appeal of this Order with the Under
Secretary of Commerce for Industry and
Security. The appeal must be filed
within 45 days from the date of this
Order and must comply with the
provisions of part 756 of the
Regulations.

Fifth, a copy of this Order shall be
delivered to Delgadillo and shall be
published in the Federal Register.

Sixth, this Order is effective
immediately and shall remain in effect
until October 9, 2029.

John Sonderman,

Director, Office of Export Enforcement.
[FR Doc. 202223181 Filed 10-24-22; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 3510-DT-P

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

International Trade Administration
[A-570-928]

Uncovered Innerspring Units From the
People’s Republic of China:
Preliminary Results of Antidumping
Duty Administrative Review; 2021—
2022

AGENCY: Enforcement and Compliance,
International Trade Administration,
Department of Commerce.

SUMMARY: The U.S. Department of
Commerce (Commerce) is conducting an
administrative review of the
antidumping duty order on uncovered
innerspring units (innersprings) from
the People’s Republic of China (China).
The period of review (POR) is February
1, 2021, through January 31, 2022.
Commerce preliminarily determines
that the two companies under review,
Bomei Tex Ltd. (Bomei) and Saffron
Living Co., Ltd. (Saffron Living), are part
of the China-wide entity. We invite
interested parties to comment on these
preliminary results.

DATES: Applicable October 25, 2022.
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Christopher Maciuba, AD/CVD
Operations, Office V, Enforcement and
Compliance, International Trade
Administration, U.S. Department of
Commerce, 1401 Constitution Avenue
NW, Washington, DC 20230; telephone:
(202) 482—-0413.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Background

On February 8, 2022, Commerce
published in the Federal Register a
notice of opportunity to request an
administrative review of the
antidumping duty order on innersprings
from China for the POR.? On April 12,
2022, in response to a timely request
from Leggett & Platt, Incorporated (the
petitioner),2 and in accordance with

1 See Antidumping or Countervailing Duty Order,
Finding, or Suspended Investigation; Opportunity
to Request Administrative Review and Join Annual
Inquiry Service List, 87 FR 7112 (February 8, 2022);
see also Uncovered Innerspring Units from the
People’s Republic of China: Notice of Antidumping
Duty Order, 74 FR 7661 (February 19, 2009) (Order).

2 See Petitioner’s Letter, “Request for 2021-2022
Antidumping Duty Administrative Review,” dated
February 28, 2022.

section 751(a) of the Tariff Act of 1930,
as amended (the Act), and 19 CFR
351.221(c)(1)(i), we initiated an
administrative review of the Order with
respect to Bomei and Saffron Living.?

On April 21, 2022, we provided U.S.
Customs and Border Protection (CBP)
entry data under administrative
protective order (APO) to all interested
parties having APO access and invited
parties to submit comments by April 28,
2022.4 No party filed comments. The
deadline for interested parties to submit
a no-shipment certification, separate
rate application (SRA), or separate rate
certification (SRC) was May 12, 2022.5
No party submitted a no-shipment
certification, SRA, or SRC.

Scope of the Order

The merchandise subject to the Order
is uncovered innerspring units
composed of a series of individual metal
springs joined together in sizes
corresponding to the sizes of adult
mattresses (e.g., twin, twin long, full,
full long, queen, California king and
king) and units used in smaller
constructions, such as crib and youth
mattresses. All uncovered innerspring
units are included in the scope
regardless of width and length. Included
within this definition are innersprings
typically ranging from 30.5 inches to 76
inches in width and 68 inches to 84
inches in length. Innersprings for crib
mattresses typically range from 25
inches to 27 inches in width and 50
inches to 52 inches in length.

Uncovered innerspring units are
suitable for use as the innerspring
component in the manufacture of
innerspring mattresses, including
mattresses that incorporate a foam
encasement around the innerspring.

Pocketed and non-pocketed
innerspring units are included in this
definition. Non-pocketed innersprings
are typically joined together with helical
wire and border rods. Non-pocketed
innersprings are included in this
definition regardless of whether they
have border rods attached to the
perimeter of the innerspring. Pocketed
innersprings are individual coils

3 See Initiation of Antidumping and
Countervailing Duty Administrative Reviews, 87 FR
21619 (April 12, 2022). (Initiation Notice).

4 See Memorandum, “U.S. Customs and Border
Protection Data Query,” dated April 21, 2022.

5 See Initiation Notice, 87 FR at 21619-20 (“With
respect to antidumping administrative reviews, if a
producer or exporter named in this notice of
initiation had no exports, sales, or entries during
the period of review (POR), it must notify
Commerce within 30 days of publication of this
notice in the Federal Register. . . . Separate Rate
Certifications . . . {and}. . . Separate Rate
Applications are due to Commerce no later than 30
calendar days after publication of this Federal
Register notice.”).
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